# CAIRNGORMSNATIONALPARKAUTHORITY

## MINUTESOFTHEBOARDMEETING heldatTheVictoryHall,Aboyne onFriday3 <sup>rd</sup>June2005at1.30pm

#### PRESENT

EricBaird StuartBlack DuncanBryden BasilDunlop LucyGrant MarcusHumphrey BruceLuffman EleanorMackintosh AnneMacLean AlastairMacLennan

#### InAttendance:

DavidCameron MurrayFerguson PatriciaHamilton DickenHiggins JaneHope FionaNewcombe GailRenwick ShirleyTulloch

### **Apologies:**

SallyDowden DouglasGlass AngusGordon DavidGreen WilliamMcKenna BobWilson SandyPark AndrewRafferty GregorRimell DavidSelfri dge JoyceSimpson SheenaSlimon RichardStroud AndrewThin SusanWalker

# WelcomeandIntroduction

1. TheConvenorwelcomedeveryonetotheBoardmeeting.

# MinutesofLastMeeting –approval

2. Theminutesofthepreviousmeeting(6 <sup>th</sup>May2005)wereapproved with no changes.

## MattersArising

- 3. Thefollowingpointswereraised:
  - a) Paragraph8: AfurtherBoardpaperontheLandBasedBusinessTrainingProject wasinhandforearly2006.
  - b) Paragraph 12: the Head of Economic and Social Development was actively considering apresentation to the Board by youth groups.
  - c) Paragraph15(a):apaperonentrypointsignagewouldbebroughttotheBoardin September with all the relevant information on sources,toenabletheBoardtomakeafinaldecision.
  - d) Paragraph 15 (b): a full briefing and presentation had been given to Board Members on the 20 <sup>th</sup> May. This had been followed by discussions between the HeadofVisitors ServicesandRecreationandthedirectlyelectedmembersonhow best to engage the Board in this project. A number of actions were proposed: BoardMembers would be informed of the dates of meetings of the Project Team, and would be welcome to attend; in addition a monthly written briefing would also be sent to Board Members. Finally, it was noted that life size mock upshad now been made in cloth, and members were being invited to attend demonstration sessions on site to enable the proposed entrypointm arkers to be assessed.
  - e) Paragraph 15(c): staff had considered the process followed to date on the entry point marker project, and were content that this had been robust. A part of that process had been the briefing to Members on the 20 <sup>th</sup> May; anoteoft hat meeting had been circulated.
  - f) Paragraph15(d):ashortmonthlyupdatewasbeingpreparedforallMembersand staff.

## GrantPackagefor2005 -06and2006 -07(Paper1)

- 4. DickenHigginsintroducedthepaperwhichreportedbackontheSmallGrantsScheme runin2004 -05;proposedanapproachfordeliveringgrantsduring05 -06and06 -07and soughttheBoard'sapprovalfortheexpenditureinvolved.
- 5. Indiscussionthefollowingpointsweremade:
  - a) The investment of CNPA Programme funds totalled £315,000 this comprised £155,000in05 -06and £160,000in06 -07.
  - b) Applying for grants could be quite challenging for local communities, and it was suggested that publicising case studies could be a useful way of spreading good practice and encouraging uptake of these grant schemes. It was confirmed that in the first year of the CNPA's Grant Scheme some time had been put into sharing good practice with potential applicants. It was also suggested that in the new grant

scheme programme staff would be much more proactively in volved in initiating and suggesting grant applications. The CNPA would also be working with SNH and other partners to use their networks to encourage uptake of the CNPA's scheme.

- c) It was important for the scheme to be user -friendly to applicants; in partic ularit was important that there should be a single point of contact. It was noted that in the first year of the grant scheme there had been many positive comments in this respect, and Dicken Higgins was congratulated for the very positive and helpful way in which he had deal twith applicants.
- d) The CNPAG rant Schemeshould link in with the Highland Year of Culture 2007, which was receiving funding from the Scottish Executive and Highland Council.
- e) Thefirstyearofthegrantschemehadbeensuccessful,butt hismightleadtoover demand in the coming year. In dealing with applications, the focus for making decisionsontheawardofgrantswouldbebasedonhowwellaproposaldelivered thegoalssetoutintheCNPACorporatePlan. Butinsodoing, theCNPA would also attempt to provide information on where else an applicant could apply for funding, with the aim of trying in due course to act as a one stop shop for the manydifferentsourcesofgrantavailable.
- f) Thequestion was asked whether the 10% contribut ion required from communities could be a contribution in kind, through provision of labour for example, or whether this had to be cash. It was noted that in the previous year, finding a relatively small amount of cash had not generally been a major proble m for communities; some people felt that providing cash was a stronger indication of commitment than some of the alternatives. Nevertheless, there were cases, for example building a community hall, where the provision of labour could amount to a significant contribution to a project. As currently proposed, the integrated grant scheme did not envisage provision of the 10% contribution in kind. However, given the range of views, it was suggested this should be investigated further as an option for the future re.
- g) There should be a report on the grant scheme's performance in 05 -06 before any changes we reconsidered for the scheme in 06 -07.
- h) It would be important to raise the awareness of the grant scheme, given that communities inevitably had to gear up to apply and it was already June. The dangerofanunderspendwouldneedtobemonitoredclosely.

#### 6. Thepaperwasapprovedasfollows

- a) TheBoardnotedthesuccessfuloutcomeoftheSmallGrantsSchemein2004 05,andcongratulatedallstaffconcernedinwhathadbee nawellrunscheme withahighlevelofuptake
- b) TheBoardapproved the approach to delivering grants during 05 -06 and 06 07, with the proviso that there should be a report on the performance of the scheme in 05 -06 before any changes would be considered for 06 07.
- c) The Board approved the expenditure of £315,000 on these grants over the next two years (05 -06, and 06 -07) subject to confirmation of approval by the Scottish Executive.
- 7. Action:
- a) GrantSchemefor05 -06torunasproposedinthepaper,with10%co ntribution required in cash rather than in kind. Further consideration to be given on

#### whether this should be changed for 06 -07. A report to be brought back to the Boardontheoutcomeand conclusions of the 05 -06 grants cheme before any such changes were considered.

### **CorporatePlanReport:Theme2(paper2)**

- 8. Fiona Newcombe introduced the paper which informed the Board of progress and plans for achieving the second theme of the Corporate Plan for 2005 -2008 ("to promote sustainable resource, landand water management; and to protect and enhance our wild life and lands capes").
- 9. Indiscussionthefollowingpointsweremade:
  - a) In light of the emorning's Planning Committee (at which it was agreed that the CNPA should write to an estate which had flouted the plannin gsystem, and also discussattheLocalauthorityplanningProtocolGroupaconsistentwayofdealing withsuchissues) it was suggested that the organisation should give somethought to whether ornot there were adequate mechanisms at its disposal to deal with the protection of the heritage -both cultural and natural. The morning's proceedings had highlighted how important elements of our cultural heritage were singularly vulnerable if theywere not listed, and planning rules were flouted.
  - b) The work being done with the Scottish Executive ondeveloping land management contracts was crucial. It would be of great importance to the future of the area if land management contracts could be developed which were tailored to the needs of the Cairngorms.
  - c) The import ance of moorlands must not be overlooked, given that they constituted 60% of the area of the National Park. It was noted that financial support for moorlands was a gap in the current suite of incentive schemes, and the CNPA were looking further into this with public agencies such as SNH in the context of their NNRs and Natural Care Scheme. The essential question was whether some of the current support incentives should be extended beyond the designated areas. The Cairngorms Moorland Project would come to an end in due course, but had been avery successful project, and officials were actively considering on how best to develop this project and build on every thing that had been learnt. The rewould be a Board paper in September on taking forward this project.
  - d) Forestrypolicywouldbeahighpriorityfornewstaff, notablytherevision of the ForestryFrameworkPaper, aBoardpaperwasexpected very soon on this.
  - e) The point was made that the recently announced revision to agri -environment payments by the Scot tish Executive had been very damaging to farmers in the Cairngorms. The reduction in payments was being reviewed, but what was importantwasthemessagewhichsuchareviewsentouttorecipients, namely that there may be little security in grant schemes. In working with the Scottish Executive to set up the principles behind land management contracts, it would be important to build in something about security of payment rates, not ably setting up clear procedures and processes for dealing with proposed changes.
  - f) OneofthestrandstotheIntegratedGrantSchemewastheLBAPandthequestion was asked whether communities were sufficiently well aware of this strand to the grant scheme, which was part funded by the Local Authorities and SNH. It was pointed out that the LBAP (Local Biodiversity Action Plan) Project Officer had a role in liaising with community councils and raising awareness of the grants

available. It was noted that the Project Officer should liaise closely with CNPA Board Members, particularly those who were likely to be going to community council meetings. A short briefing paper on what communities needed to know about applying forgrants would be extremely helpful. At the same time, it would be helpful if the Project Officer himself could g et out to some of the community council meetings.

- g) It was noted that there were important links between some of the work in this Corporate Plan Theme and the work on tourism - close liaison between the Natural Resources Group and the Economic and Social Dev elopment Group was particularly important tore inforce this.
- h) OneofthegreatstrengthsoftheLBAPProjectwasitspotentialtoinvolvealotof members of the general public in conservation. The Small Grants Scheme could doalottodemystifythejargon and thescience associated with Biodiversity, and it washoped that significant amounts of effort could be put into public ising the grant scheme as well as the LBAP.
- i) Given its geographical spread of members, the CNPA had a huge opportunity to raise the pr of ile of work such as the LBAP and the associated grant schemes for helping to deliver this. The CNPA had members at virtually all the community council meetings across the National Park, providing a tremendous opport unity to orktodeveloptheCNPA'sapproachtolandscapeand raiselevelsofawareness.W wild land was high up the agenda for when additional staff arrived. The main thrust for this work would be through the National Park Plan. The work to deliverthis theme in the Corporate Plan would cont inue to be a mixture of long -term strategic work on land management contracts, forestry incentives, and upland management, at the same time as highly visible work on immediate delivery of smallerprojectsthroughgrantschemes; amixtureoflong -termstrat egyontheone hand.andshort -termdeliverablesontheother.

### AOCB

10. The Convenorannounced that the CNPA had entered at earning to the Highland Cross, and we relooking for sponsorship to raise money for a number of charities.

#### **DateofNextMeeting**

11. Friday the1 <sup>st</sup>ofJulyattheVillageHall,NethyBridge.